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BUKOVINA PEOPLE AND EVENTS

* Bukovina Society members Joe Erbert (Ellis, KS) and Oren
Windholz participated in the German Heritage Days held in Hays,
KS on April 1-2, 2005. This is the third year that the Ellis County
Historical Society, along with other local businesses, has sponsored
this event, which focuses on seminars on the German Heritage of
Ellis County and the State of Kansas. Joe gave a talk on the
history and design of the hammered dulcimer followed by a
demonstration. In his spare time Joe builds these instruments.
Those attending past Bukovinafests will undoubtedly recall hismu
sical renditions, which delighted all. Oren spoke of the similarities
and differences between the Volga Germans and the Bukovina
Germans. Basing his presentation on information gleaned from
interviews and research as well as from his own family ties both to
the Volga and the Bukovina Germans, Oren expanded on themes
relevant to both groups.

e Doris Rennert Hochman (West Palm Beach, NY) sent an email to
the Society after discovering our website from a man in Denmark
who had information on her Rennert family. She informs us that
her father, Max Rennert, emigrated with his family from Bukovina
to the United States in 1920, settling in Manhattan. Here he along
with his family and friends joined a Bukovina Society, which has
long since disbanded.

® International Board member Doug Reckmann is proud of the
mature beech tree in his yard in Portland OR. Many volunteer
trees have popped up in his garden, so he has made an offer to
anyone willing to transplant them. Recently he sent a batch to the
Bukovina Society. The seedlings have been placed in a nursery for
later planting at the Bukovina Society headquarters.

e |AST CALL for members to return the planning survey mailed
with the last Newsletter. Please forward your responses to Steve
Parke at PO Box 7261, Pueblo West, CO, 81007, or to the
Bukovina Society, PO Box 81 Ellis, KS 67637. For more informa-
tion, you may contact Steve at 719-547-1327 or e-mail him at
sparke@pcisys.net

* The Grayson and District History Book, a 900 page hardcover
book with 900 pictures will be the centerpiece of the 100th
anniversary of the founding of Grayson, Canada. There is a brief
history of the immigration of the many Grayson people to
Saskatchewan. Bukovina immigrants were the predominant group
and they family stories in the book give a unique perspective of
their history. The book is available only by prepayment with a
deadline of September 1, 2005 for $90.00 (Canadian) and $15.00

(Canadian) for mailing, made payable to Grayson History Book.
Order from: Grayson & District History Book, Box 6, Grayson, SK
SOA 1EO0, Canada. An email copy of the brochure is available
from: Ibisch@sasketl.net

MEMBERSHIP UPDATE
by Steve Parke (Pueblo West, CO)

The project Remembering Our History and Envisioning Our Future
has revealed some interesting statistics on membership. A full report of
this survey will be presented and discussed at the Society s annual
membership meeting in Ellis, KS on July 28, 2005. All members are
invited and welcome to attend.

The following statistics have been compiled based on a current
membership of 343:

41 members or 12% reside in Ellis County of whom 59% are life
members.

42 members or another 12% reside in other Kansas localities outside of
Ellis County of whom 57% are life members.

183 members or 53% live in states in the USA outside of Kansas of
whom 38% are life members.

52 members or 15% live in Canada of whom 27% are life members.

19 members or about 5.5% live in Germany of whom 26% are life
members.

7 members with one each from Australia, Austria, Brazil, Germany,
Israel, Sweden, and the United Kingdom account for 2% of the
total membership.

Overall: 25% of the members reside in Kansas with 53% elsewhere in
the USA and the remaining 22% outside its borders.

BUKOVINA SOCIETY WEBSITE UPDATE
by Werner Zoglauer (Naperville, IL)

Three years ago, on May 1, 2002 our new website at
www.bukovinasociety.org went public with the goal of becoming the
premier internet location for information about our German speaking
Bukovina ancestors and their descendents, worldwide. Since then the
site has grown its content to over 200 pages of Culture, History and
Genealogy related articles, mostly in English, but some articles also in



German and Portuguese (Brazilian). Additional popular features
include our online store for purchasing Bukovina related books, maps
and souvenirs and a very active Guest Book, which has enabled the
reunion of several long lost cousins.

Our most recent addition of an enhanced Genealogy Database Server,
has allowed us to make available to our members, a collection of over
215,000 names related to Bukovina ancestors and their descendents.
These names are maintained by several dedicated Bukovina Genealo-
gists who freely share the results of their hard work with our members.
This part of the website has become very popular and has attracted
many new members from the USA, Canada, Germany, Austria,
Australia, Brazil, Israel, Poland, Romania and Sweden.

We greatly appreciate the support of our website contributors, whose
dedication and hard work fills our website with very informative
content. Of course, also a big thank you to the many website visitors
who have communicated to us their appreciation for the Bukovina
Society s website.

THE FOUNDING OF THE ZIPSER
VILLAGE OF JAKOBENY
by Claus Stephani

Published under the title, Perg- Ont Hittnoabeta: Zur Entstehung der
Gemeinde Jakobeny im Buchenland, (Miner and Foundry Worker:
The Founding of the Community of Jakobeny in Bukovina) in Neuer
Weg (Bucharest), trans. Sophie A. Welisch, Vol. 30, No. 9203,
December 19, 1978), p.6.

According to Zipser tradition Jakobeny derives its name from a
Romanian shepherd, lacoban. This lacoban reputedly came from the
village of Valea Putnei (Putnathal). One day he drove his flock along
the Moldava River to the Golden Bistritz. Here in the lovely Bistritz
Valley he built a log cabin and lived there until he died.

When in 1785 the first eight German families from the Zips (Slovakia)
Schr der, Mieslinger, Stark, Schneider, Knobloch, Wahnsiedel,

Hoffmann and Theiss  settled here, lacoban, according to oral reports
was already an old man with a long white beard.

In 1937 The Bukovina folklorist Franz Lang described the family
history of a Jakobeny miner in the old melodic Zipser dialect: My
great grandfather immigrated from the Zips and was a miner and
foundry worker. The Arschtzberg mine produced manganese. In the
mountains one can still see the smelter as evidence, which the Zipsers
had built. The foundry and machine tools are still in use.

Itis a fact that as early as 1783 masons and carpenters from a
Transylvanian military unit had started work on the construction of a
smelter the first installation of this kind in southern Bukovina; thus
in 1784 arose the settlement of Fundu Fieru (Eisenthal) an the
Eisenbach, a tributary of the Golden Bisritz. The first settlers included
the Zipser families of Weisshaupt, Brier, Klein, Scheike, Henig (also

H nig) and Stark. The oldest house supposedly was located under the
cliff ; it belonged to Johann Klein.

After Karl Manz , Knight of Mariensee, acquired the iron works in
1796, another forty German families from the Zips, responding to his
offer, migrated to Jakobeny in the first decade of the nineteenth
century. Among them, according to a report of the Bukovina Chamber
of Commerce, we find the names of the following heads of families:
Hoffmann (mining judicial replacement), Mieslinger (master foundry
man), Schr der (?), Stark (manager), and Gleisner from Freudenthal
(mining administrator).

With the later immigration of German specialists from the Zips and
also from Upper Silesia, e.g., the forebears of the families of Jalowsky,
Gaschinsky, Nikelsky, Zawetzky, Gorsky, Schirosky, Ottschowsky,
Terschansky and others, Jakobeny emerged as the oldest Zipser
settlement of Bukovina and as significant large community, which in
the 1930s counted over 3000 inhabitants.

In Jakobeny organized education in the German language existed as
early as 1808. The first teacher Christian Leiser, was a master
shoemaker by trade. He taught school in order that the children
should become smarter than their parents, as the forester Franz
Gotsch noted in his memoirs. The teacher Leiser was compensated for
his important work by the families Steiner, Krieger, Lang, Muhm,

G rtner, Gotsch, Sapadi, Kollarek and by the previously-named
families, who built an attractive large school with two rooms and
paid the teacher a monthly wage. This schoolhouse was demolished
around the turn of the century under the leadership of Carl
Frankendorfer, who came from the Hungarian city of Modra (Mod-
ern); it was replaced by two new school buildings, which are still
extant today.

In its layout Jakobeny, in contrast with other Zipser towns, is a
characteristic ribbon development with mostly wide, well-tended
streets: Haaschgasse, Kr tengasse, Fuhrmanngasse, Obere Gasse,
Manzenthalergasse, Schwegelbadgasse, Tschudinagasse, Androjagasse,
Eisenthalgasse, and finally K lbergasse ( Am Kloppoarsch, [dialect: hit
rear end]), since here live the hit-rear-end Zipsers, who sat in front of
their houses in the evening and whacked the passing cattle with sticks
in order to hasten their movement. The inhabitants of the K Ibergasse,
rightly or wrongly, were the butt of many jokes. They were ambitious
and friendly people, only they had the misfortune of living on

K Ibergasse.

In1900 the first Zipser worker, Reinhold Kappel relocated from
Jakobeny to the N sner Land toward Birg u (Burgau); there followed
in the spring of 1901 Levinus Hennel, and in the fall Michael
Knobloch, both from Jakobeny. Between 1901 and 1924 a further
thirty-two Jakobeny families: Altzenauer, Ellschl ger, Maitner,
Gaschinsky, Bernhard, Klein, Krieger, Wenzel and others moved to the
N sner Land and settled in Livezile (Jaad, where Am Lahmrich there
is a Zipser row), Unirea (Wallendorf), Crainim t (Baierdorf), Budacul
de Jos (Deutsch-Budak), Rodna Veche (Altrodna), llva (Illau)and
Bistritz.

BORI REMEMBERED
by Sophie A. Welisch, Ph.D. (Congers, NY)

This essay is based in large part on
the introduction (pp. 1-7) of The
Bori Story: Genealogies of the
German-Bohemian Families Who
in 1835 Founded Bori in
Bukovina (Now in Romania) with
History of the Village and Its
People published privately by
Maria Lang Becker, Larry R.
Jensen and Sophie A. Welisch in
1996.

June 2005 marks the 170th
anniversary of the founding of the
village of Bori in southern
Bukovina. Now incorporated into
the neighboring town of
Gurahumora and populated by
ethnic Romanians, Bori once



